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Defendants, Seminole Tribe of Florida, a federally recognized Indian tribe (Seminole Tribe)?;
Seminole Police Department, a subordinate governmental unit of the Seminole Tribe of Florida (SPD);
William Latchford, Chief of Police of the Seminole Police Department (Chief Latchford) and Johnny
Nuckles, a duly authorized officer and employee of the Seminole Police Department (Officer Nuckles), by
and through their undersigned attorneys, hereby move pursuant to Rule 12(b)(1) and (6) of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure for an order dismissing the claims set forth in plaintiff’s Amended Complaint for
lack of subject matter jurisdiction and for failure to state a claim upon which relief may be granted, based
upon the entitlement of each of these Defendants to immunity from suit under the doctrine of tribal
sovereign immunity as well as Plaintiff’s failure to plead facts sufficient to state a claim arising under 42
U.S.C. § 1983, against these Defendants. As grounds for this motion, the substantial matters to be argued
are on follows:

I. EACTUAL BACKGROUND

On or about December 11, 2008, William Perry filed a complaint in this Court seeking
damages against all parties named herein other than the Seminole Tribe of Florida based upon an arrest
that occurred on or about September 15, 2007 on the Tampa Reservation of the Seminole Tribe of
Florida while Plaintiff was allegedly picking up his girlfriend at the Seminole Hard Rock Hotel &

Casino — Tampa which is located on the Tampa Reservation of the Seminole Tribe of Florida.

! Plaintiff has also named Seminole Hard Rock Casino, Inc., a Florida corporation as a party
defendant. It appears from the context of the allegations contained in the Amended Complaint that
Plaintiff’s allegations pertain to the facility located on the Tampa Reservation of the Seminole Tribe of
Florida more commonly known as the Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino — Tampa. This is not
owned or operated by Seminole Hard Rock Casino, Inc. but rather is owned and operated by the
Seminole Tribe of Florida as a subordinate governmental unit of the Tribe itself. In view of the fact
that Plaintiff has sued the Seminole Tribe of Florida and the Seminole Tribe of Florida also does
business under the name Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino — Tampa, the party that Plaintiff
apparently intended to name appears to be before the Court since the “party” is actually the Seminole
Tribe of Florida doing business as Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino — Tampa which is owned and
operated by the Seminole Tribe pursuant to the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act as set forth in 25 U.S.C.
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Thereafter, on or about March 24, 2009, prior to any of the moving defendants filing a response to the
complaint, Plaintiff filed an Amended Complaint, apparently as a matter of right under the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure.

In the Amended Complaint, Plaintiff’s claim is based upon his arrest by Officer Nuckles on the
property of the Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino in Tampa while Plaintiff was allegedly waiting
for his girlfriend. He contends that jurisdiction of the court is predicated upon a violation of his rights
under 42 U.S.C. 88 1983 and 1988 as well as rights secured to Plaintiff by the First, Fourth, Fifth,
Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. Jurisdiction of Plaintiff’s
claims are predicated upon federal question jurisdiction arising under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and 1343.
Under 28 U.S.C. 8 1343(a)(3), the District Courts of the United States are granted original jurisdiction
of an civil action authorized by law to be commenced by any person to redress the deprivation, under
color of any state law, statute, ordinance, regulation, custom or usage of any right, privilege or
immunity secured by the Constitution of the United States or by any act of Congress providing for the
equal rights of citizens within the jurisdiction of the United States. Plaintiff sets forth in this complaint
that he is a citizen of the United States entitled to invoke this statute as against the moving defendants.
(Amended Complaint at 1 1-4).

The facts upon which Plaintiff’s claims are based are set forth in the Amended Complaint.
Plaintiff contends that at all times material hereto, Officer Nuckles was a police officer employed by
the SPD to perform law enforcement duties at the Seminole Hard Rock Casino in Hillsborough

County, Florida, and was assigned to the Seminole Hard Rock Casino parking area.? Plaintiff

§ 2701, et seq.

2 This allegation is what Plaintiff mistakenly utilizes to tie his allegations to the party named
Seminole Hard Rock Casino, Inc. The casino to which Plaintiff is actually making reference is known
as Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino — Tampa which is owned and operated by the Seminole Tribe
of Florida as a subordinate governmental unit of the Tribe itself. The casino is regulated by the Indian

2
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correctly states that at all times material to the complaint, Officer Nuckles was acting as the agent,
servant and employee of the SPD and the Seminole Tribe. (Amended Complaint at 11 5-6).

According to the Amended Complaint, Chief Latchford is the duly appointed Chief of Police of
the SPD, a subordinate governmental unit of the Seminole Tribe. At all times material to the
complaint, Plaintiff alleges that Chief Latchford was the commanding officer of Officer Nuckles,
through a chain of command recognized in law enforcement, through which Chief Latchford assumed
ultimate command responsibility for training, supervision and conduct of SPD officers, including
Officer Nuckles. (Amended Complaint at { 8).

In paragraph 9 of the Amended Complaint, Plaintiff contends that Seminole Hard Rock Casino,
Inc. is a Florida corporation which employed Officer Nuckles and Chief Latchford. As noted, the
property described in the complaint is actually the Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino which is
owned and operated by the Seminole Tribe of Florida in accordance with the Indian Gaming
Regulatory Act, 25 U.S.C. § 2701, et seq. (the IGRA) as well as rules and regulations promulgated by
the National Indian Gaming Commission (NIGC) through which the Seminole Tribe conducts gaming
on tribal trust lands under the jurisdiction of the Seminole Tribe, including the Tampa Reservation of
the Seminole Tribe.

Plaintiff contends that on or about September 15, 2007 at approximately 0300 hours, Plaintiff
went to the Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino to pick up his girlfriend while driving in his 2008
Nissan Titan truck. (Amended Complaint at § 10 and 11). Once again, the property described by
Plaintiff where he went to pick up his girlfriend was the Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino on the
Tampa Reservation of the Seminole Tribe. Plaintiff contends that at the time that he went to pick up

his girlfriend on that morning, he was not sleepy, under the influence of alcohol or experiencing any

Gaming Regulatory Act, 25 U.S.C. § 2701, et seq.
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psychotic episode. He further contends that he was not speeding, driving recklessly or presenting any
harm to anyone. (Amended Complaint at 11 10-13). Plaintiff states that while he was looking for a
parking space at the Seminole Hard Rock Hotel & Casino, Officer Nuckles approached him and
demanded to see his drivers’ license. Plaintiff apparently did not display his drivers’ license but
instead told Officer Nuckles that he was waiting for a friend. He also inquired of Officer Nuckles
whether he had done anything wrong. At that point, Plaintiff alleges that Officer Nuckles accused him
of drinking while operating a motor vehicle and demanded that he exit his vehicle to take a field
sobriety test. (Amended Complaint at {1 14-16). Plaintiff next contends that when he received a
telephone call from his girlfriend on his cellular phone, Officer Nuckles began to unsuccessfully search
Plaintiff for contraband but that no contraband was found.

According to Plaintiff, Officer Nuckles handcuffed and arrested Plaintiff, and transported him
to the Hillsborough County Jail on charges of driving under the influence and resisting arrest without
violence; however, Plaintiff contends that there were no grounds for his arrest. He also contends that
the arrest effected by Officer Nuckles was performed in front of other police officers in full view of
people in the Tribe’s casino. (Amended Complaint at § 17-21). Plaintiff further contends that at the
time he was handcuffed, he told Officer Nuckles that the cuffs should be placed in front of him
because he previously had brain surgery some nine (9) years before which left him unable to bend his
right arm. Notwithstanding the alleged disclosure and request, Plaintiff claims that Officer Nuckles
bent his arm back, thereby causing Plaintiff to experience “..excruciating pain and suffering.”
(Amended Complaint at { 18).

In his Amended Complaint, Plaintiff claims that each of the moving defendants knew of the
alleged vicious propensities of Officer Nuckles and allowed him to continue to have contact with the

public without taking any effective action to prevent Officer Nuckles and other Seminole Police
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personnel from engaging in misconduct of the type alleged by Plaintiff in the Amended Complaint.
Moreover, Plaintiff contends that he was subjected to an “institutionalized practice of the Seminole
Police Department...” which was ratified by the Defendants herein who, with prior notice of the
“vicious propensities” of Officer Nuckles, took no steps to train him, correct his abuse of authority or
discourage the alleged unlawful use of authority. (Amended Complaint at {{ 22-26). Plaintiff then
contends that notwithstanding the moving defendants allowed criminal charges to be filed against him
at the Hillsborough County Criminal Court, thereby causing restrictions on Plaintiff’s liberty including
the necessity of posting bail. (Amended Complaint at § 22). Plaintiff further asserts that all changes
brought by Officer Nuckles were terminated in favor of Plaintiff by an order of dismissal rendered on
September 8, 2008. Plaintiff claims that as a result of the misconduct described in the Amended
Complaint, he has experienced humiliation, emotion distress, pain and suffering and attorneys’ fees,
among other damages. (Amended Complaint at 1 22-24).

Among other police misconduct, Plaintiff asserts that Chief Latchford and the other moving
defendants authorized, tolerated and ratified misconduct consisting of a failure to properly discipline,
restrict and control tribal police employees, including Officer Nuckles, known to be irresponsible with
their dealings with citizens in the community, and by failing to take adequate precautions in hiring,
promoting and retaining police personnel including, specifically, Officer Nuckles. (Amended
Complaint at 11 26-27).

The gist of Plaintiff’s Amended Complaint is set forth in paragraph 30. Plaintiff asserts that the
conduct alleged in the Amended Complaint was engaged in by Officer Nuckles “...under color of state
law authority...”. He further alleges that the other moving defendants are responsible because of its
authorization, condemnation, and ratification which he contends resulted in Plaintiff being deprived of

rights secured to him under the United States Constitution and the laws of the United States which
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include, but are not limited to, Plaintiff’s First Amendment right to freedom of expression, his Fourth
Amendment right to be free from the unlawful seizure of his person, his Fifth and Fourteenth
Amendment rights to be safe from the unjustified use of excessive force utilized by police and his
Eighth Amendment right to be free from cruel and unusual punishment. He also contends the conduct
upon which the Amended Complaint is based further constitutes a false arrest, false imprisonment as
well as assault and battery for which Plaintiff seeks compensatory and punitive damages as well as
attorneys’ fees pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1988.

In support of this motion, the moving defendants have attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and
“B”, respectively, copies of the following genuine documents:

A. Amended Constitution and Bylaws of the Seminole Tribe of Florida

B. Tribal Ordinance C-01-95, commonly known as the Tribal Sovereign Immunity

Ordinance of the Seminole Tribe of Florida.

Based upon the matters set forth herein, any action arising against Officer Nuckles, Chief Latchford,
SPD and the Seminole Tribe must be dismissed for lack of subject matter jurisdiction based upon the
doctrine of tribal sovereign immunity.
1. THE DISTRCT COURT LACKS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION OVER

PLAINTIFF’S CLAIMS AGAINST THE MOVING DEFENDANTS BASED UPON THE
DOCTRINE OF TRIBAL SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY.

It is well settled that absent a clear, express and unmistakable waiver of immunity by the Seminole
Tribe of Florida or the clear, express and unmistakable abrogation of immunity by act of Congress, federal
and state courts do not have jurisdiction to resolve civil disputes brought against the Seminole Tribe or any
of its subordinate governmental units and its Tribal Police Officers and other employees and agents.

Kiowa Tribe of Oklahoma v. Manufacturing Technologies, Inc., 523 U.S. 751 (1998); Oklahoma Tax

Commission v. Citizen Band Potawatomi Tribe of Oklahoma, 498 U.S. 505 (1991); Santa Clara Pueblo v.
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Martinez, 436 US 49, 58 (1978); Houghtaling v. Seminole Tribe of Florida, 611 So. 2d 1235 (Fla. 1993);

Seminole Police Department v. Casadella, 478 So. 2d 470 (Fla. 4th DCA 1985). This immunity from suit

applies not only to the Seminole Tribe and its subordinate governmental units, but also to tribal officials,

employees and to all other authorized agents of the Tribe. Tamiami Partners Ltd. v. Miccosukee Tribe of

Indians of Florida, 177 F.3d 1212 (11" Cir. 1999); Florida Paraplegic Association v. Miccosukee Tribe of

Indians of Florida, 166 F.3d 1126 (11" Cir. 1999); State of Florida v. Seminole Tribe of Florida, 181 F.3d

1237 (11" Cir. 1999). See also, Tribal Council Ordinance C-01-95. (Exhibit “B”)

Where a tribal official, employee or other agent, such as Officer Nuckles and Chief Latchford, act
on behalf of the Tribe in the course of their agency and employment when the alleged conduct occurred,
those agents or employees are protected from suit by the tribe's sovereign immunity which, of course, also

extends to all subordinate governmental units of the Tribe, such as SPD. Tamiami Partners Ltd. v.

Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida, 177 F.3d 1212 (11" Cir. 1999). See also, United States v. State of

Oregon, 657 F.2d 1009, 1012, n.8 (9th Cir. 1981); White Mountain Apache Tribe v. Industrial

Commission of Arizona, 796 P.2d 223 (Ariz. App. 1985). In this case, the alleged acts of Officer Nuckles

and separate acts or omissions alleged against Chief Latchford occurred, if at all, while each were acting
within the course and scope of their respective agencies and employment as a tribal police officer and the
Chief of Police, respectively. In addition to the foregoing, a tribal employee or agent will also be entitled
to tribal sovereign immunity where, as here, the suit is, in substance, an action against the tribal sovereign.

Oklahoma Tax Commission v. Graham, 882 F.2d 951, 957 (10th Cir. 1987); United Nuclear Corporation

v. Clark, 584 F.Supp. 107, 109 (D.D.C. 1984); see also Larson v. Domestic and Foreign Commerce Corp.,

337 U.S. 682, 687-689 (1949). In determining whether a suit against a tribal official or agent is, in effect, a
suit against the tribal sovereign, the court must inquire as to whether or not the judgment seeks, in effect, to

expend itself upon the resources of the tribe. If so, the action against the tribal agent must fail. Dugan v.
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Rank, 372 U.S. 609, 620 (1963). Here, the individual claims against Officer Nuckles and Chief Latchford,
if successful, would expend itself against the Treasury of the Seminole Tribe and the police budget of SPD.
A. Tribal Sovereign Immunity - Background

As a sovereign Indian tribe, the Seminole Tribe and its agents are entitled to sovereign immunity.

Chief Justice Marshall stated in Worchester v. Georgia, 31 U.S. (6 Pet.) 515, 557 (1832), that Indian tribes

are:

...distinct political communities, having territorial boundaries within which
their authority is exclusive, and having a right to all the lands within those
boundaries, which is not only acknowledged, but guaranteed by the United
States.

Further, in Atkinson v. Haldane, 569 P. 2d 151 (Alaska 1977), the Alaska Supreme Court reiterated the

immunity of Indian tribes from suits in state courts in recognition of the supremacy of the decisions of the

United States Supreme Court:

Because of the supremacy of federal law, we are bound to recognize the
doctrine of tribal sovereign immunity, even if we were to find valid public
policy reasons to hold it inapplicable in this case.

Id. at 163. (Emphasis added).

Section 16 of the Indian Reorganization Act of 1934, as amended, 25 U.S.C. § 476 establishes the
right of an Indian tribe to organize for the common welfare of its members by adopting a constitution and
bylaws in accordance with the provisions of the Act. By adoption of its constitution, the Seminole Tribe of
Florida became a fully recognized constitutionally based Indian tribe under the laws of the United States.
As such, this recognition vested in the tribal government certain powers in addition to its pre-existing
sovereign powers. One of the long standing sovereign powers that the Seminole Tribe has always had and
retained is its right as a sovereign tribal government to sovereign immunity for itself, its subordinate

governmental units, such as SPD, and its employees and agents.



Case 8:08-cv-02455-EAK-TBM  Document 7 Filed 04/15/2009 Page 10 of 22

The federally recognized tribal sovereignty of Indian tribes lies at the heart of the special and
unique relationship that exists between the United States and Indian tribes: that of a dominant sovereign
to a dependent sovereign. This relationship has been defined as being most akin to that of a guardian and

its ward, as stated by Chief Justice John Marshall in Cherokee Nation v. Georgia, 30 U.S. (5 Pet.) 1, 17

(1831). Fifty years later, the United States Supreme Court redefined the relationship in the same vein as
follows:

These Indian tribes are the wards of the nation. They are communities
dependent on the United States, -- dependent largely for their daily food;
dependent for their political rights. They owe no allegiance to the states,
and receive from them no protection. Because of the local ill feeling, the
people of the states where they are found are often their deadliest enemies.
From their very weakness and helplessness, so largely due to the course of
dealing of the federal government with them and the treaties in which it has
been promised, there arises the duty of protection, and with it the power.
This has always been recognized by the executive, and by congress, and by
this court, whenever the question has arisen.

United States v. Kagama, 118 U.S. 375, 384-385 (1886); see also, United States v. Sandoval, 231 U.S. 28

(1913).

It is firmly established that Indian tribes are regarded by the United States as dependent political
sovereign governments which possess all aspects and attributes of sovereignty except where they have
been abrogated by Congress. As an aspect of their sovereignty, Indian tribes and their agents -- such as
Officer Nuckles and Chief Latchford -- are immune from suit, either in federal or state court, without an
express and unmistakable tribal waiver or a clear and unmistakable Congressional abrogation. Kiowa

Tribe of Oklahoma v. Manufacturing Technologies, Inc., 523 U.S. 751 (1998); Santa Clara Pueblo v.

Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 58 (1978); Maryland Casualty Company v. Citizens National Bank of West

Hollywood, 361 F. 2d 517, 520 (5th Cir. 1966); Houghtaling v. Seminole Tribe of Florida, 611 So. 2d

1235 (Fla. 1993).
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Indian tribes and their agents are regarded as having an immunity from suit similar to that enjoyed

by the federal government. Namekagon Development Company v. Bois Forte Reservation Housing

Authority, 517 F. 2d 508 (8th Cir. 1975). Moreover, since an Indian tribe's sovereign immunity is co-
extensive with that of the United States, a party may not maintain a claim against an Indian tribe or any of
its authorized agents or subordinate governmental units absent a firm showing of an effective waiver

which is unequivocally and unmistakably expressed. Ramey Construction Company, Inc., v. Apache

Tribe of Mescalero Reservation, 673 F. 2d 315 (10th Cir. 1982). A waiver of tribal sovereign immunity

may never arise by implication. Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 58-59 (1978).

In American Indian Agricultural Credit Consortium, Inc. v. Standing Rock Sioux Tribe, 780 F. 2d

1374, 1378 (8th Cir. 1985), the Court was clear and emphatic in expressing an Indian tribe's
unguestionable right to sovereign immunity absent an express waiver thereof:

Indian tribes long have structured their many commercial dealings upon the
justified expectation that absent an express waiver, their sovereign
immunity stood fast. Relaxation of the settled standard invites challenge to
virtually every activity undertaken by a tribe on the basis that tribal
immunity had been implicitly waived. Moreover, a waiver of immunity by
tribal action represents a substantial surrender of sovereign power and,
therefore, merits no less scrutiny than a waiver based on congressional
action. As the Fifth Circuit stated, [T]o construe the immunity to suit as not
applying to suits on liability as arising out of private transactions would
defeat the very purpose of Congress in not relaxing the immunity, namely,
the protection of the interests and the property of tribes...(citing Maryland
Casualty Co. v. Citizens National Bank, 361 F. 2d 517, 521-22 (5th Cir.),
cert. denied, 385 U.S. 918 (1966).

B. Applicability of Tribal Sovereign Immunity to Tribal Employees and Agents

In a line of cases decided over a period of 175 years, the United States Supreme Court has
recognized that Indian tribes “retain their original natural rights” which were vested in them, as
sovereign governmental entities existing long before the genesis of the United States. Florida

Paraplegic Assoc. v. Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida, 166 F.3d 1126, 1130 (11th Cir. 1999),

10
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citing Worcester v. Georgia, 31 U.S. (6 Pet.) 515, 559 (1832). The principle of tribal sovereign

immunity from suit is a well-established doctrine. United States v. U.S. Fidelity Guaranty Company,

309 U.S. 506, 512 (1940); Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 56 (1978); Oklahoma Tax

Commission v. Citizen Band Potowatomi Indian Tribe of Oklahoma, 498 U.S. 505, 509 (1991); Kiowa

Tribe of Oklahoma v. Manufacturing Technologies, Inc., 523 U.S. 751 (1998); Houghtaling v.

Seminole Tribe of Florida, 611 So.2d 1235 (Fla. 1993). As sovereign governmental entities that

predate the establishment of the United States, Indian tribes and their subordinate governmental units,
as well as their officials, employees and agents are immune from suit by third parties without
unmistakable tribal consent at its highest level, or the unmistakable consent of Congress. Cherokee

Nation of Oklahoma v. Babbitt, 117 F.3d 1489, 1498-1499 (D.C. Cir. 1997). Tribal sovereign

immunity does not derive from an act of Congress, but rather is one of the inherent powers of limited

sovereignty which has never been extinguished. 1d. at 1498, citing, United States v. Wheeler, 435 U.S.

313, 322 (1978). In United States v. U.S. Fidelity Guaranty Company, 309 U.S. 506, 512 (1940) the

United States Supreme Court held that "Indian nations are exempt from suit without Congressional
authorization.” This includes complaints, counterclaims (compulsory and permissive) and crossclaims.

See also, Oklahoma Tax Commission v. Citizen Band Potowatomi Indian Tribe, 498 U.S. 505, 509

(1991).

As noted in Kiowa, supra, and its numerous predecessors, including, Bank of Oklahoma v.

Muscogee Creek Nation, 972 F.2d 1166, 1169 (10" Cir. 1992), “the basic law of sovereign immunity

for Indian Tribes is clear: suits against Indian Tribes by third parties are barred by sovereign immunity

absent a clear waiver by the Tribe or congressional abrogation.” See also, State of Florida v. Seminole

Tribe of Florida, 181 F.3d 1237, 1241 (11" Cir. 1999). As previously noted, a waiver of tribal

sovereign immunity “cannot be implied but must be unequivocally expressed.” Santa Clara Pueblo v.

11
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Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 58 (1978). It is equally well settled that tribal sovereign immunity extends to

tribal agencies and tribal organizations. Weeks Construction, Inc. v. Oglala Sioux Housing Authority,

797 F.2d 668, 670-671 (8" Cir. 1986); Wilson v. Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians, 459 F.

Supp. 366, 369 (D.N.D. 1978), (dismissing claims under the Indian Civil Rights Act and under 42

U.S.C. § 1983 against tribal entity on grounds of sovereign immunity); Seminole Police Department v.

Casadella, 478 So0.2d 470 (Fla. 4™ DCA 1985) (dismissing false arrest claim against tribal police
department and tribal police officer on sovereign immunity grounds).
A tribe’s immunity from the claims of third parties extends to tribal officials, employees and

agents when acting within the scope of their authority. See, Merrion v. Jicarilla Apache Tribe, 455

U.S. 130, 148 (1982); Tamiami Partners, Ltd. et al. v. Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida, 177

F.3d 1212, 1225 (11™ Cir. 1999); United States v. Oregon, 657 F.2d 1009, 1012, n.8 (9" Cir. 1981);

Snow v. Quinault Indian Nation, 709 F.2d 1319, 1321 (9th Cir. 1983), cert. den. 467 U.S. 1214 (1984);

Cypress v. Tamiami Partners, Ltd., 662 So.2d 1292 (Fla. 3d. DCA 1995); Seminole Police Department

v. Casadella, 478 So.2d (Fla. 4™ DCA 1985).

It is axiomatic that a sovereign tribal government and its police department may only act
through their officers, employees and agents and the defense of sovereign immunity may not be evaded
by the “simple device of suing officers [or employees] in their individual capacity.” John v. Hoag, 500

NYS 2d. 950, 954 (N.Y. Supp. 1986); see also, Larson v. Domestic and Foreign Commerce Corp., 337

U.S. 682, 688 (1949). (The sovereign can only act through agents); Oklahoma Tax Commission V.

Graham, 822 F.2d 951, 957 (10" Cir. 1987), vacated on other grounds, 484 U.S. 973; Bottomly v.

Passamaquoddy Tribe, 599 F.2d 1061, 1067 (1* Cir. 1979); United Nuclear Corporation v. Clark, 584

F. Supp. 107-109 (D.D.C. 1984); Kenai Oil & Gas, Inc. v. Department of Interior, 522 F. Supp. 521,

531 (D. Utah 1981); (“tribal immunity may not be evaded by suing tribal officers. .. .”) aff’d 671 F.2d

12



Case 8:08-cv-02455-EAK-TBM  Document 7 Filed 04/15/2009 Page 14 of 22

383 (10" Cir. 1982). Thus, when a Tribe acts, it may only do so through its officials, employees and
agents. When a tribal police officer, including the Chief of Police, acts on behalf of the tribe, the tribal
police officer has the same immunity from claims as that possessed by the tribe itself. See, John v.
Hoag, 500 NYS 2d. 955-956 (N.Y. Supp. 1986). (Claim against tribal police department and tribal
police officer must be dismissed on tribal sovereign immunity and jurisdictional grounds.)

C. Plaintiff’s Complaint Fails to Show that Defendants acted under Color of State Law.

In order for Plaintiff to assert a viable claim arising under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, Plaintiff must
show that the Seminole Tribe, SPD, Chief Latchford and Officer Nuckles, acted under color of state
law when arresting Plaintiff. Plaintiff’s constitutional claim fails to state a claim against the Tribe,
SPD, Chief Latchford, Officer Nuckles, either individually or officially, arising under 42 U.S.C. §
1983, since these Defendants could not have acted under color of state law. The common law
immunity from suit enjoyed by the Tribe extends to SPD, Chief Latchford and Officer Nuckles and
shields them from any liability arising under 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Although the First, Fourth, Fifth,
Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments are framed as limitations on federal and state authority, these
Constitutional provisions do not constrain Indian tribes which are regarded as separate sovereign tribal

governments predating the Constitution. Bruette v. Knope, 554 F.Supp. 301, 304 (E.D. Wisc. 1983);

see also, Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 59-72 (1978); Means v. Wilson, 522 F.2d 833,

838 (8" Cir. 1975); Wilson v. Turtle Band of Chippewa Indians, 459 F.Supp 366, 367-369 (D.N.D.

1978).

In Bruette v. Knope, 554 F.Supp 301 (E.D. Wisc. 1983), a claim was asserted against two tribal

police officers for alleged violations of the Plaintiff’s rights arising under Fourth, Fifth, Ninth and
Fourteenth Amendments as well as violations of 42 U.S.C. 8§ 1983 and 1985 arising from the alleged

violation of Plaintiff’s constitutional rights. These claims were dismissed on tribal sovereign

13
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immunity grounds. The claims were also found to be defective since the tribal police defendants could
not have acted under color of state law. In order to maintain an action arising under 42 U.S.C. § 1983,
a Plaintiff must show that the conduct complained of was committed by a person acting under color of
state law; and that the subject conduct deprived Plaintiff of rights, privileges and immunities secured

by the Constitution or laws of the United States. Parratt v. Taylor, 451 U.S. 527, 535 (1981). State

action may not be fairly implicated where an alleged constitutional deprivation (which is also plainly

lacking in this case) is not attributable to the “state actor.” Lugar v. Edmondson Oil Co., 457 U.S. 922,

937 (1982). The allegations contained in the Amended Complaint makes clear that the Tribe, SPD,
Chief Latchford and Officer Nuckles are not “state actors.”
“A tribal officer is entitled to sovereign immunity if his actions are within the scope of his

authority.” Sulcer v. Davis, 986 F.2d 1429, 1993 WL 53613 (10 Cir. 1993) (citations omitted), cert.

denied, 510 U.S. 870 (1993); see also, Fletcher v. United States, 116 F.3d 1315, 1324 (10 Cir. 1997).

“Tribal sovereign immunity is a matter of subject matter jurisdiction, ..., which may be

challenged by a motion to dismiss under Fed.R.Civ.P. 12(b)(1)...” See, E.F.W. v. St. Stephen’s Indian

High School, 264 F.3d 1297, 1302-03 (10 Cir. 2001) (citations omitted). Upon a defendant’s Rule

12(b)(1) motion to dismiss, the plaintiff bears the burden of proving jurisdiction. Richmond

Fredericksburg & Potomac R. Co. v. United States, 945 F.2d 765, 768 (4 Cir. 1991), cert. denied, 503

U.S. 984 (1992).
Federal courts hold that no action under 42 U.S.C. 8 1983 may be maintained by persons
alleging deprivation of constitutional rights under color of tribal law, that actions taken under color of

tribal law are beyond the reach of Section 1983. Sulcer, supra; R.J. Williams Co. v. Fort Belknap

Housing Authority, 719 F.2d 979, 982 (9 Cir. 1983), cert. denied, 472 U.S. 1016 (1985). To be sure,

“[i]t is well settled that a defendant’s actions pursuant to Tribal authority are not ‘under color of state

14
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law’ for the purposes of maintaining an individual capacity suit against that defendant under 42 U.S.C.

§ 1983.” E.F.W. v. St. Stephen’s Mission Indian High School, 51 F.Supp.2d 1217, 1230 (D.Wyo.

1999), aff’d, 264 F.3d 1297 (10 Cir. 2001). “Indian tribes are not states of the union within the
meaning of the Constitution, and the constitutional limitations on the states do not apply to tribes.”

Chapoose v. Hodel, 831 F.2d 931, 934 (10 Cir. 1987). Accordingly, the Plaintiff’s Amended

Complaint has not alleged any claims against any of the moving defendants over which this Court
would have subject matter jurisdiction.

The doctrine of tribal sovereign immunity is essential to guard against the unwarranted exercise
of state and federal jurisdiction over tribal affairs which would impinge on tribal self-government.
Plaintiff asks this Court to do just that. Unlike other types of governmental entities, Indian tribes
would find the loss of assets more difficult to replace because Indian tribes have a limited revenue base

over which to spread losses.® See, Atkinson v. Haldane, 569 P. 2d. 151, 169 (Alaska 1977). Tribal

sovereign immunity is essential to protect tribal assets which are held for the benefit of all tribal
members and must be available at all times to be applied to meet tribal needs. If tribal assets are
permitted to be dissipated through litigation, long standing Congressional efforts to provide Indian

tribes with economic and political autonomy would be frustrated. Cogo v. Central Council of the

Tlingit & Haida Indians, 465 F. Supp. 1286, 1288 (D. Alaska 1979). Without an express and

unequivocal congressional waiver of tribal immunity, it is respectfully submitted that no Court or other

tribunal is free to imply one. Atkinson v. Haldane, 569 P. 2d. 151, 167, (Alaska 1977). As previously

noted, a waiver or abrogation of tribal sovereign immunity may not arise by inference or implication

but rather must be clear, express and unmistakable as well as limited in nature. Santa Clara Pueblo v.

® The status of an Indian tribe as a sovereign government is unique and different from the other forms
of sovereign governments recognized in the U.S. Constitution; that is, federal, state, tribal and foreign
governments. It has been held, for example, that Indian tribes”...have a status higher than that of a

15
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Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 58-59 (1978).

The vitality of the doctrine of tribal sovereign immunity is so securely rooted in American law
that it has been held that federal and state courts lack subject matter jurisdiction to consider actions
brought by third parties against Indian tribes as well as tribal officials, employees and agents for
claims of negligence, intentional tort as well as for alleged intentional violations of rights secured by

the Constitution and laws of the United States. Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 56-57

(1978) (claim arising under Indian Civil Rights Act barred on sovereign immunity grounds); Talton v.
Mayes, 163 U.S. 376 (1896) (claims alleging violation of Fifth Amendment rights by tribal employee

barred by tribal sovereign immunity); Evans v. McKay, 869 F.2d 1341 (9" Cir. 1989); aff’g in part,

Evans v. Little Bird, 656 F. Supp. 872 (D. Mont. 1987); United Nuclear Corp. v. Clark, 584 F. Supp.

107 (D.D.C. 1984) (claims alleging violation of Fifth Amendment rights barred by tribal sovereign

immunity); Bruette v. Knope, 554 F. Supp. 301 (E.D. Wisc. 1983) (claims alleging violations of rights

secured by the Fourth, Fifth, Ninth and Fourteenth Amendments of the U.S. Constitution together with
claims arising under 42 U.S.C. 88 1983 and 1985, based upon a police chase and the alleged use of
excessive force, were all held to be jurisdictionally barred by tribal sovereign immunity). In each of
these cases, actions against Tribes, their police departments and their employees for alleged intentional
deprivations of rights secured by the Constitution and laws of the United States have been held to be
barred on tribal sovereign immunity grounds.

As Plaintiff is well aware, the Seminole Tribe operates its police department and its law
enforcement functions pursuant to a Self-Determination Contract authorized by Public Law 93-638 as
a part of the government-to-government with the United States of America. Under the Self-

Determination Contract for law enforcement services, the federal government funds the Seminole

state.” Native American Church v. Navajo Tribal Council, 272 F. 2d 131, 134 (10th Cir. 1959).

16



Case 8:08-cv-02455-EAK-TBM  Document 7 Filed 04/15/2009 Page 18 of 22

Tribe’s law enforcement services, as this function was one which the federal government was
previously obligated to provide to the Seminole Tribe. As such, Plaintiff’s only claims arising from
the conduct alleged in his amended complaint would be an action brought solely and exclusively
against the United States of America under the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. 82871, et. seq.
(FTCA) which requires, as a condition precedent, that Plaintiff give notice to the United States of
America as required by law under the FTCA on Form 95. Under the FTCA the Seminole Tribe and its
employees, including Officer Nuckles and Chief Latchford are deemed to be federal employees and a
part of the Bureau of Indian Affairs pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2804(a) and (f) which requires that all
claims against Indian tribes, such as the Seminole Tribe, arising from the Indian Self-Determination
and Education Act, including police functions, be deemed and brought against the United States. 28
U.S.C. § 2679. Under the FTCA, a party claiming to be injured by tribal law enforcement operating
pursuant to a Self Determination Contract is required to make a presuit submission on Form 95 in
accordance with the presuit notice requirements set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 2675. Plaintiff must then
allow six (6) months to pass to give the United States of America the opportunity to investigate the
claim. Thus, any claim that Plaintiff has against Officer Nuckles, Chief Latchford, the SPD and the
Seminole Tribe would arise, if at all, under the FTCA as a claim against the United States of America
since Officer Nuckles and Chief Latchford were acting within the course and scope of their
employment when the alleged misconduct occurred. Without a viable claim arising under the FTCA,
Plaintiff’s claims against the Seminole Tribe, the SPD, Chief Latchford and Officer Nuckles are all
barred by the doctrine of tribal sovereign immunity. Either way, Plaintiff’s claim against the moving
defendants must be dismissed.

The Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act of 1975 (“ISDEAA”), Public

Law 93-638, authorizes federal agencies to contract with Indian tribes to provide certain services to the
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Tribe. See 25 U.S.C. 88 450-450n. Such a contract is commonly referred to as a “self-determination
contract” or “638 contract.” A “self-determination contract” is a contract “between a tribal
organization and the [federal government] for the planning, conduct and administration of programs or
services which are otherwise provided to Indian tribes and their members pursuant to Federal law.” 25
U.S.C. § 450(b)(j). “Congress enacted the ISDEAA to encourage Indian self-determination and tribal
control over administration of federal programs for the benefit of Indians, by authorizing self-
determination contracts between the United States, through the Secretaries of the Interior and of Health

and Human Services, and Indian tribes.” Demontiney v. U.S. ex rel Dept. of Interior, Bureau of Indian

Affairs, 255 F.3d 801, 806 (9" Cir. 2001). There are several categories of contractible services or
programs culled out by the statute, one of which concerns the provision of a police force and related
law enforcement functions on Indian lands. 25 U.S.C. § 450(a)(1)(B). Congress thus recognized that
one of the ways to further Indian self-determination was to allow a tribe to contract for law
enforcement services so the tribe could maintain a tribal police force on the reservation capable of
effectively enforcing criminal laws.

For many years, the Seminole Tribe has been in a contract with the Bureau of Indian Affairs
(“BIA”) to provide law enforcement services under a self-determination contract or 638 contract for
which it receives federal funding. In 1988, Congress amended the ISDEAA to allow recovery under
the FTCA for certain claims arising out of the performance of self-determination contracts. “Congress
acknowledged that tribal governments, when carrying out self-determination contracts, were
performing a federal function that the federal government would otherwise be required to provide, and
that a unique legal trust relationship exists between the tribal government and the federal government
in these agreements. Because of this relationship, Congress concluded that the federal government

must provide liability insurance to the tribal government for self-determination contracts.” FGS
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Constructors, Inc. v. Carlow, 64 F.3d 1230, 1234 (8" Cir. 1995).

In this case, if Perry has a viable claim under the FTCA, the claim against the United States
covers all claims against all moving defendants. If, on the other hand, an FTCA claim is not viable,
plaintiff’s claim must fail on jurisdictional grounds since these defendants are each immune from suit
under the doctrine of tribal sovereign immunity. Either way, the moving defendants do not belong in
this lawsuit and plaintiff is well aware of this.

111. CONCLUSION

Without an express and unmistakable Tribal waiver or Congressional abrogation of tribal
sovereign immunity, it is respectfully submitted that no court or other tribunal is free to imply one. As
noted, a waiver of tribal sovereign immunity may not arise by inference or implication. Santa Clara

Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 58-59 (1978). Based upon all of the foregoing, the Seminole Tribe,

as a sovereign Indian Tribe, and all of its subordinate governmental units, including the Seminole
Police Department, as well as its employees, agents and officials, including Officer Nuckles and Chief
Latchford are immune from suit filed by Plaintiff under the doctrine of tribal sovereign immunity.

Accordingly, Plaintiff’s claim against these defendants must be dismissed.

Respectfully submitted,

s/ Donald A. Orlovsky

Donald A. Orlovsky, Esq.

(Fla. Bar No. 223816)

dao4law@aol.com

KAMEN & ORLOVSKY, P.A.

1601 Belvedere Road, Ste. 402-S

West Palm Beach, FL 33406

Telephone:  (561) 687-8500

Facsimile: (561) 687-7892

Counsel for Defendants, Seminole Tribe of Florida,
Seminole Police Department, William Latchford,
Johnny Nuckles
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Inciudes changes
approved in Amendments
1 thru XX - S . -
ST T CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS
of the .
SEMINCLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA

PREAMBLE

We, the members of "the Seminole Tribe of Florida, seeking divinf.{ guidance
under God, in order to promote justice, insure tranquility, encourage .the.

- general welfare,
.and liberty for o
..Seminole . Tribal -Coubci]

Y R of- Bylaws'as: the . rulés’ for “kts “deliveration.  (Amehdment’ I)... "

ARTICLE I - TERRITORY:'

- The jt}pi's&-iét"i.‘c;ﬁ'f__'oE-__‘ii:h-é Seminole'rribe ofE‘loridashall . inclﬁdé all lands

within the Hollywood, Big Cypress,

- Which is held by the United States i
Or by the United States 'in trust :for the Seminole TIndians of Florida, ULands

held .undér. Executdve Order No. 1379,. dated June 28, 1911, .and such other lands
as may hereafter be acquired for the use and benefit of the Seminole Tribe of

Florida. (Ame;ndment XII1})
ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP

§_é(:_§ion_l: "'A,Il'p'erscns who are enrolled as members of the Seminole Tribe of
- Florida as of the date this amendment is adopted by vote of the -adult members
of the Tribe. . -

Any person of Seminole Indian blood whose name appears onh the

Census Roll of the Seminole Agency of January 1, 1957, may be enrolled upcn

written application if admitted to membership by a majority vote of the Tribal
Council, provided that the census Roll of January 1, 1957, may be corrected by
the Seminole 7Tribal Council up to and including August 22, 1970. (Amendment

XIII)

-Section 3. Any person of one-fourth (1/4) or more degree of Seminole Indian
blood born after the adoption of this amendment both of whose parents are
members of the Tribe, shall be enrolled as a tribal member upon - written

application to the Tribal Council.

Any person of one-fourth (1/4) or more dejree of Seminole Indian

blood born after the adoption of this amendment of a marriage between a member
of the Tribe and any other person may be enrolled if admitted to membership by

a majority vote of the Tribal Council.

F
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safeglard our interests and secure the -blessings of Ere_edqrh_',
urselves and for our posterity, -do- hereby form and pp‘gani_zﬁg,'.g
i and we -do:-ordain/.and establish, this ;g;gn‘st_:itfm_z-tigpl:',am: RSt

and -Brighton Reservations, the title ta
n trust for-the Sedlnole Tribe 'of Florida, -

Fr)
.ty
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section 5. ' A child .of one-fourth .(1/4) or more degree of Seminole Indian
blood, born out of wedlock after . the adoption of this amendment, to.a Seminole
mother' who, s a melber of the Tribe, may be-enrolied by a majority vote of the
Tribal Council-if the child otherwise meets the requirements: for’enroliment.

Section 6. A child of one-fourth (1/4) or more degree of geminolé Indian
_ blood born out of wedlock, to a mother who is not a member of the Tribe and 1s
not eligible to become a member, may be entolled by a majority vote of the
Tribal Council if the mother files with the Tribal Council proof established
in accordance with the .laws of the.State of Florida as to the paternity of the
child, rand the person adjudged to be the father is an enrolled member of the
“Pribe, and if the child otherwise meets the requirements for enrollment. =~
- In the event the applicant is ‘a minor, the ‘application may be -
..\ prépared .and presénted by the- parent. of. ‘parents
T pelativell o S T e T .
Section. 8. The Tribal Council shall have the power to pass ordlnances, which
_are-not in-eonflict with:this constitution, -governig: ;futurl_e..‘méufber‘stfib_.‘ loss -
of membership and the adoption of -members into the Seminole Yribe of Florida;
. which ordinances shall be -subject to the approval of 'the Secretary of. the -
Interior, or his-authorized representative. {Amendment Xrir) -~ "~~~ =~ °

Section 9. WNo person who 1s admitted to tribval membership by adoption shall
be eligible to hold an elective office in the Seminole Tribe of Florida.

(Amendment II and V)
ARTICLE IYI — ORGANIZATION.OF GQVERNING_BODY

The governihg body of the Seminole Tribe of Florida shall be known

_S_g_(_:tj;on' 1. '
as the Tribal Council and shall consist of five {(5) members, each of whom
shall have votino rights. ' ' :

The Tribal Council shall consist of a Chairman elected at-large
and councilmen elected from and exclusively by the residents of each of the
following Seminole Reservations: . Hollywood, Big Cypress, and Brighton. The
President of the Board of Directors, elected 1n accordance with the provisions
set forth 1in the Charter of the Seminole Tribe of Florida, Inc. shall meet
with and serve as Vice-Chairman of the Tribal Council during his term of

office. (Amendment XII}

Section 2.

Any member of the Tribe having reached the age of 21, and who has
ighton, or Big Cypress Reservation for a

gection 3.
1 be

been in resldence on Hollywood, Br
continuous period of Eour years immediately prior to an election, shal

quallfied to be a candidate for election to the Council. (Amendment XIL)

shall select from within or without the

Section 4. The Tribal Council
d such committees as may be

membership of the tribe a Secretary-Treasurer an
deemed necessary.

§gg_£_ign__—_?, : ner, . al ar AP
$. Of: the milmors: fr by any adult: it
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Committeemen so selected shal}. serve at the pleasure of the Trlbal Counc;.l.
All .officers and employees. appointed or employed by the. Tribal €guncil mnow
© serving -or hereafter are .appointed .or ‘employed im . perpanent positions and-
-;shall serve “unless . removed or ‘theilr 'services . term:nated for inefficiency,
gross misconduct, neglect of duty, or for good and sufflcxent reasons as may -
hereafter be prescribed by the Tribal Council. (Amendment VI and XIV)

ARTICLE IV — NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

Section 1 (a}. The first election of representatives to the Tribal Council
under this amended " Constitution shall be held within thirty (30} -days .
following the adoptlon and approval of the amendments and shall be under the

supervision of the: 1ncumber1t Trxbal Council ancI the Superintendent of the ;

. -Seminole Agency- . _ o _;

' "‘.'}-(b) .f:'nny'person whcf has reached his eighteenth (183 year"thirty (30)
"days prlor to- an election who 1s a member of the Seminole Tribe of Florida

shall be eligible to vote in any election of the Seminole "Tribe except in
- -.those- elections . where voting requiretnenta may be otherwis.e prescribed by. -

C pederal - law. (Amendment XVlI)

[

Section“*g. In any'-electxon' of the—'Semihoie“-Tfibe."resident"voterS"shé}I n
" register with ‘the reservatlion of- their domicile. where this Constitution
provides for election of councilmen from .a partlcular reservation, only voters

residing on that reservation 'shall be eligible to participate in the election

of such representatives. HNon-resident voters shall vote only for at-large

. candidates.

Section 3. The successful.candidates in elections to the Tribal councilt shall

hold office as Eollows:
(a) The candidate From each reservation receiving the largest number of votes
shall holid office for two (2) vears.

(b) The candidate for <Chalrman elected at-large who receives the largest
number of votes shall hold office for four {4} years.

(¢) Successful candidates shall take office on the first Monday in the month
immediately following their election. (Amendment XV) :

(d) If a member of the Tribal Council fails or refuses to attend two regular
neetings in succession, unless excused due to illness or other causes for
which he cannot be held responsible, ‘his office shall be declared Eorfeited by
.a resoluticn of the 7Tribal Council, and a special electlon called by the
'ribal Council shall be held to replace him according to Section 5 of this

- A

Article.
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Section 4. The Tribal Council may by an affirmative vote of four-fifths (4/5)

of ‘its total membership remove any tribal official or member of the Tribal -
g Tribal Council

‘Council from.officeé whp fails ‘to carry out his" duties or ‘hi Ui
responsibilities, or is found ‘guilty oF " a ‘misdemeanot’ involving " moral
turpitude or a felony in any county, State’ or -Federal court, or for gross
neglect of duty or misconduct reflecting on the dignity and integrity of the

Tribal Council.

Each reservation, by petition signed by twenty percent (20%) of the eligible
voters thereon, may request the recall-of such reservation's representative by
the Tribal Council. Request -for the recall of the council Chalrman shall be’
by petition signed by twenty percent (20%) of the number of .voters who

participated in this election.

S0 Batore, dny. vote of [recall er “rereval’ is’ faken,. the enber-or GEfictdl shallbs i
“-given a writtenstatement. of all - charges flled éi_glains't"hi'rn at- least teh {10).
“days before the meeting of the Tribal Council before which he is to appear and
. he shall be given an opportunity to answer any .and all written charges at such
: -.megt}ﬁgf::The'deéision:gf}thefoibalidbunbilushali-hé-finiigf*; I
Section 5. If a councilman. should  die,  resign, or permanently leave the |
- Yeservation he répresents, of be’ removed from office for cause, ‘the’ Council
shall declare the office vacant and within thirty (30) days an election shall
be held on the relevant reservation to FEill the vacancy for the unexpired
term: Provided, a reqularly scheduled election is not to be held within sixty

(60) days. In the event that the Chairmanship should become vacant, the
office will not be filled by the Vice—Chalrman, but the Council.shall call an
electjon-at~large within a period of thirty (30) days to gelect a new Chairman
to serve .unt¥i his predecessor’s term has expired:: provided. a ‘reqularly
scheduled election is not -to be held within sixty (60) days.

section 6. Any qualified member of the Seminole Tribe of Florida may announce
such .announcement to be in

his or her candidacy for the Tribal Counclil,
en (10) eligible voters from

writing and supported by a petition signed by t
the reservation on which he or she resides. 1In the case of an at-large
candidate, 'his announcement must also be ‘in writing and supported by a

petition signed by ten {(10) eligible voters of each reservation. RAny petition
submitted in support of a candidate shall be considered invalid when and if a
signer has signed -a petition supporting any other candidate {or the same
office. All announcements shall be presented to the Secretary of -the Tribal . -
council at least twenty (20) days prior to the date of election. It shall be

the duty of the Secretary of the Tribal Council to post in at least one public
place on each reservation and publish at least once in a newspaper of- general
circulation at least fifteen (15) days before the electlion the names of the
candidates for Tribal Council. No candidate shall be Eermitted to seek and/or -

hold more than one elected office at any given period.
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gection 7. . All electiohs -shall be by secret ballot and shall be held. in

- accordance with the. rules and regulations prescribed by the Tribal Council, .

© subject to- the review of the BSecrétary of .the Interior,- or his authorized .
. representative. In ‘the @vent -that .the- Tribal Couneil does. not call - an -..

&lection as herein provided, the Secretary of the Interior, within sixty (60) .

days after the regular election date, may call such an election. (Amendment

IIT and VII)
ARTICLE V — DOWERS OF TRIBAL COUNCIL

e Tribal Council by existing

In addition to all powers vested in the Seminol I
f Florida shall exercise the

law, the Tribal cCouncil of the Seminole .Tribe o :

- following powers, subject: to any -limitation imposed- by the'Constttution;or_the'

. . Statutes. of . the --United .States; .and subject: further’ to- all expressed
'":fresfﬁigtiqq}ugcnhﬁqchapqwégqfqqgtained:ipﬁthgsigpg$tiﬁu;i¢hfgn&fBl}@ﬁsgl"" PR

Section. l: To -négotiate with the Federal, State arid local governments and -
others on behalf of. the fTribe and to advise ~and consult with the
_ rgprgsgqtatiqes_qﬁ'the-ngﬁﬁtméngﬁoE_;heulntgﬁﬁap;on;allpaqtiyiﬁiés of: -the
. Department which -may affect” "thé  Seminole “Tribe “of - Florida, excepting those
~ tribal affairs . which may héreafter -be specifically delegated -under the

_provisions of the Chartér- of-the Seminole Tribe. - . SR AR Coe T

gsection 2. To empldy legal counsel for the‘protection of the rights of the
Tribe and its members, the choice of counsel and fixing of fees to be subject
to the approval of the Secretary of the Interior. or hls authorized

representative,
-gection 3. To -marage and. .lease or: otherwise deal with. tribal lands and
‘sale,

resources -in. accordance .with law .and to. prevent the

communal
interest in lands, or other

disposition, lease or-encumbrance of tribal lands,
tribal assets without the consent of the Trilbe.

To advise with the Secretary of the Interior, or -hig authorized

with regard to all appropriation estimates or Federal projects

"section 4.
prior to the submission of

representative,
for the benefit of the Seminole Indians of Florida

such estimates to the Bureau of the Budget and the Congress.

section 5. (a) To administer any [funds within the control of the Tribe; to
make expenditures from available funds for Tribal purposes, including salaries
‘and expenses of tribal officials or employees; subject, however, to the
condition that -this authority shall not extend over the responsibilities and
“authorities specifically delegated to the Board of Directors by the Charter of
the Tribe. All expenditures of tribal funds under control of the Tribal
Council shall be by resolution duly approved by a majority of the Tribal .
council! in legal session and the amounts so expended shall be a matter of -

public record at all times.

-5 -
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(b) The Tribal Council, 'subject to the approval of the "Secretary of the
Intertor, or his authorized _representative, shall prepare annual- budget
. .requests For thé advancerment to thé ‘control.of the Tribe such money as’ is-now.
_ or_may heréafier be deposited 'to the crédit.of. the Tribe, in. che United States
Treasury or which may hereafter be appropriated for.the use of -the Tribe.

Section 6. .To make and enforce ordinances, subject to the review of the
Secretary- of the Interior, or his authorized representative, covering the
tribe‘s right to.levy taxes and license fees on persons or organizations. dolng

business on the reservation.

Seb;ion 7. To promote.. public health, educatiqn; charity, and. such® other
services as may contribute "to the - Social advancewept of . thé members_of the

‘Seuinole Tribe of Florida: - - . Lo L o
e HIGRLE, TS “adopt - resolitions’ ‘réquldting the’ procedirés -of * the “deninoldr |
z in-thé conduct of tribal affairs.

-

Tribal Council, 'its-officials and committees

u.a~::'i§£££i2242ea(alfﬂo.authérities,Gontaineq}in”this;CoﬁgtitUtion,mﬁy,be.délpgﬁted o

by the Seminole Tribal councll to  tribal - officials, district’ councils, -or

assoclations to. ‘carry out;any Efunctien for which ‘the Tribal Council assumes

" primary responsibility, except by ordinance or ‘résolution-duly enacted by the.
Tribal Council in legal session, and excepting also those specific
requireménts contained in the Bylaws of the Seminole pribe of Florida.

is hereby authorized to recognize any

(b) The Seminole Tribal Council
o the members of

district committees, associations or other organization open t
the Seminole Tribe of .Florida and to- approve such organizations, subject..
however,. to the- provision that no such - committes, association -or organization .
may assume authorities spécifically granted to the Seminole Tribal Council
unless by a proper-delegation of authority by the seminole Tribal Council.
Section 106. To deposit to the credit of the semincle Tribe of Flotrida tribal
. Funds, without limitation on the amount in any account, in any National or
State bank whose deposits are insured by an agency of the Federal Government:
provided, that Funds advanced to the Tribe from funds held in trust in the
United States Treasury shall be deposlted with a bonded disbursing officer of
the United States whenever the conditions prescribed by the Secretary of the
Interior, or his authorized representative in connection with such advance

requife that the advance be so deposited.

gection 1l. To enact ordinances, subject to approval by the Secretary of the
Interior, establishing and governing tribal courts and tribal law enforcement
agencies on the Seminole Reservations; and providing for the removal or
exclusion from the reservation of any non-members of the Seminole Tribe whose
presence may be injurious to tribal members or td the interests of the
Seminole Tribe as determined by the tribal council. (Amendment XVIiT)
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Section 12. To pro}noté and protect the peace, .safety, health and general -

welfare of the tribe and its members. (Amendment XX} .
ARTICLE VI~ MANNER OF REVIEW

Section 1. Any resolution or ordinance . which by the terms of this

Constitution and Bylaws is subject to review by the Secretary of the Interior,

or his authorlzed representative, shall bs presented fo the superintendent of

the reservation within ten (10) days of its enactment, The Superlintendent

shall within ten (10) days after its receipt &pprove or disapprove the same.

If the Superintendent shall apprové any  ordinance or resolution, it shall

thereupon- becoine efFfective,.but the Superintendent shall- transmit a copy of

‘the same, bearing® his endorsement, to the Secretary of the Interier,. who may’ -

.. withm ninefy (90) days’ from-the; date of. enactment “rescind, the said erdinapce..: o

. \or resalut:lqn fOr any cause, by notd.fying the Tribal council of such decisién. RECEE

If the Supermtendent ‘shall -cefuse to approve any’ ordlnance or- resolution
.submitted ‘to him, within ten (10) days after Jits recéipt he shall advise the ..

. Tribal Counttl of hig -réasors thérefor. If Tthe “reasons’ appear - to the Tribal™ "~ -
council to be 1n.sufEic1ent it may, by a majorlty vote; refer the ordinance ot
resolution to the ‘Secretary of .the’ Intértor who.may. within ninety (90) days - .- . -
from the date of enactment of the resolution of referral, approve oOf
disapprove. same in writing, provided however no such ordinance shall become
effective until approved by the GSecretary of the Interior or his duly

authorized representative.

- Section 2. Any resolution or ordinance by the terms of this Constitution and
Bylaws that is subject .to the approval of the Secretary of the- Interfor, or
“'his authorized répresentative, shall be presented to” the Superintendent who
shall transmit  the same to the Secretary with hlS recommendations as te the

merits of the proposals.

The sald ordinance or resolution shall not become effective until it shall
have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior, or his duly authorized

representative,
ARTICLE VII - AMENDMENTS

Whenever the Tribal Council by a majority vote of the members, or the tribal
membership by a petition signed by twenty (20) percent of the eligible voters,
calls for the submission of an amendment, the Secretary of the Interior shall
call an election upon the proposed amendment to the Constitution and Bylaws.
If at such election the amendment 1s adopted by a majority vote of the
qualified voters of the Tribe voting therein, and if at least thirty (30)
percent of those entitled to vote shall vote, such amendment shall be -
submitted to the Secretary of the TInterlor and, if approved by him, shall

thereupon take effect. (Amendment TV)



+*resoutces “and ‘activities:of the TEibe,- and
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ARTICLE VIII -~ REFERENDUM

Section .- Upon recept of a petition signed by twenty (20) percent of the

‘etigible voters, or by an affirmative vote of ‘a majority of the Tribal Council -
members, any enacted ;or proposed ordinance or resolution of the Tribal Council -
shall be submitted to a referendum of the eligible voters of the Tribe. The
majority of the votes cast in such referendum shall be conclusive and binding
on the Tribal Councll. The Tribal -Council shall call such. referendum within
thirty (30) days and prescribe the manper of conducting the vote. (Amendment

VIII) B
. ARTICLE IX - BILL OF RIGHIS

.. -Spgction 1.. ALl :members of 'thé‘;seminole“_?f%bg,.;ha;lw,b¢¢;dgqgrqeqh=QQua;
./ paliticalirights: and" ‘squal. “opportunities . to-ipapritipate . in -.the: econounic.
' and. fio” person §Hall <be ‘denied’ freedom -
© of conscience, speech, association or assembly., or-due process of law, or the
. right to 'petition -for-the redress of grievances. The members of the Tribe
shall continue undisturbed in' their .religious “beliefs and . nothing i thls . ..
Constitution and Bylaws will authorize the Tribal-Council to interfere with
these traditional religious practices according to. their custom. (Amendment ; IX)

ARTICLE X -~ TRIBAL COURIS

section L. The judicial powers of the Seminole Tribe shall be vested in the
tribal courts, including a trial and appellate court. The Jurisdiction of the
tribal courts shall extend to all matters, criminal and civil, except where
‘prohibited by the constitution, laws or treaties of the United States.

Section 2. The civil and criminal offenses over which the courts of the
Seminole Tribe shall have jurisdiction shall be embodied in a Code of Laws,
adopted by ordinance of the tribal -council, and subject to approval of _the

Secretary of the Interior.

Section 3. The duties and procedures of the courts shall be determined by
ordinances of the tribal council.

section4. The tribal council shall consist of a chief judge and two
associate judges, appointed by "the chairman of the tribal council, with the
concurrence of not less than a three-fourths' (3/4) majority vote of the whole

membership of the tribal council.
Section 5. The tenure and salary of tribal judges shall be fixed by ordinance

of the tribal council and no person appointed to the office of tribal judge
shall hold at the same time any other tribal office or position.




U against himl (Amendmmt XIX)
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Sectlon 6. No person shall be appointed to the office of tribal judge unloss
‘he is.an enrolled member of the Seminole. Tribe, not less than thirty-five (35). -
years nor more -than . seventy (70) _years of -age; nor: "shall ‘any person be . .
-appointed -as a trlbal judge who- has ever been conv1cted of ‘a felony or, within -

one (1) year, the last past, of a misdemeanor.

Section 7. Persons appointed to the office of tribal judge may be removed
from office for cause including - conviction of a felony in any court of
Competent_Jurlsdlqt{on. gross neglect of duty,; -misconduct reflectlng on the
dignity and integrity of the - Seminole Tribe. sSuch removal shall . be
accomplished by 'not less than three-fourths (3/4) majority of the whole
membership of the tribal council; provided that first the “accused judge shall
be given a written statement of the charges against him at least tem {10) days
;“_before the mgeting ,of  the tribal .council. at. which action i5 to be taken.’ and. © .
2pr9vié1ng that he’ shall be. given an opporthni;y 57 answar an‘&and all cﬁ&rgéﬁ,}:_"”

o ~ BYLAWS OF THE SEMINOLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA : _
Loxwl oo ARTIELE X = DUTIES OF -OFFICERS.- - - .. %

. Sectlon 1. The chalrman of the Tribal Council shall preslde over- all meetings
of the’ Coun01l and exercise any authority specifically delegated to him as
provided in BAarticle Vv, Section 9 of the Constitution. The Chairman shall
participate in the meetings of the Board of Directors as Vice-President of
that body. He shall have full power to vote in both Tribal Council meetings

and those of the Board of Directors. (Bmendment X)

an ncting Chairman shall be appo1nted by the members of the Tribal Council
from . among those elected members present when -circumstances ' compel the

Chairman to absent himself from any meeting.

" Section 2. The Vice- ~Chairman shall assist the chairman when called on to do
so. Voting power shall he vested in him. In the absence of the Secretary,
the Vice~Chalrman shall assume all the duties and responsibilities of the

Secretary. (Amendment X)

Section 3. ' The Secretary shall cause to be prepared all minutes, resolutlons
and ordinances enacted at all meetings and forward coples, in every instance,
to the Superintendent. 1In addition to the duties ‘prescribed pursuant to
Article Vv, Section 8, the Secretary shall maintain all Eiles, records, and
correspondence of the Tribal Council -in an orderly manner for the convenience
.of the Tribal Council and exercise such other duties as may be- specifically

delegated to him.



. gnée every year by a- compé
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- Section 4. (a) The 'tribal Treasurer shall accept, receive, receipt for,
preserve and safeguard all funds in. the .custody of the Tribe from whatever
- source. iHe shall deposit all funds.in such.bank, or ‘elsewhere as directed by
the Tribal Council in accordance with Arficle V, section 10 and shall cause- to
be made'and preserved a faithful ‘record of such Funds and shall report on all
receipts and expenditures and the amount and nature of all funds 1in his
possession or custody, such report to be made in writing and filed with the
Secretary at each reqular meeting of the Tribal council and at such other

times as requested by the Tribal Council.

(b} He shall not pay out or otherwlse disburse any funds in hils possession or
custody, or in the posgession or custody of the Tribal Council, eXcept when
properly authorized to do so by-a duly enacted resolution. ' A .

pétent - audLESr _eémployed by -the- cointdl’ and At sigh.
ommissioner of Indian AFfairs “or his
In addition to-the coples prepared for
prepated. for the - -
copy for the

other time- as the Council or the ¢
authorized ‘representative . may direct.
“the -gQVErning--bédyqﬁ'oné:'QOPy of  the’ audit -shall be
Superintendent, one -copy for the Area birector. and one
Commissioner of Indian Affairs.

(d} -The tribal Treasurer shall be required to give a bond satisfactory to the
. Tribal Council .and the Commissioner of Indian Affalrs, or his authorized
reppesentatiue; and make such provisions for carrying out the Tribal Council
directives in the manner and method for custody and disbursement of funds as

shall guarantee their safety, proper disbursement and use.

section 5. The cCouncil® representatives” shall serve as Chairman of the
Committees on their respective reservations and committee meetings shall be
held on the reservation each represents. No more than two people shall serve
with him on each of his committees and they chall be members of the Tribe

restding on that particular reservation. (Amendment X}

ARTICLE LY — OATH OF OFFICE

Section 1. AllL duly elected members of the Tribal council who have been
certified shall be installed as provided in Article IILI, gection 3, upon
subscribing to the following ocath to be adminlstered by the Superintendent,

"I, , do solemnly swear that I

will support and defend the Constitution of the United

States against all enemies; that I will faithfully and -
impartially carry out the dutles of my office to the

best of my ability; that T will cooperate, promote, and
protect the best Interest of the Tribe, in accordance with

the Constitution and Bylaws of the Seminole Tribe of Florida."

- 10-~

T (G g bodks ‘and'ireords” OF theupibal frgasier ghall. be-aidived af deastis i



s pursuant to- ‘the provision of Article 'V, Sactiofi 5,

V "T'Secrion 2.
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ARTICLE IIr - SALARIES AND REMUNERATIONS

. section: i. lhe Tr;bal Councxl may - prescribe such’ salaries and remunerations

necessary -to carry .on its respon31bilities and the responsibilities of its
officlals and employees.

ARTICLE IV — ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Section 1. All Einal decisions of the Tribal Council on matters of general
and - permanent interest to members of the Tribe and to tribal administration
shall be embodied ' in ordinances. Each ordipance shall. be numbered
-consecutively beqginning with Number 1.

‘.publlc 1nspect10ns__& T il ””T.-_,:,

tEa

' be -embodied in resolutions:.
‘beginning w1th Number: 1" and Shall also be- subject ko pubiic 1nspecrion

ARTICLE V, — MEETINGS

Section 1. The regular meetings of the Tribal <Council shall be bheld
bimonthly, the first to be held within thirty (30) days of the election of the
Council. The Council may declde on the day and time for Regular Meetings.
Special Meetings may be called by the Chairman or by three (3) members of the
'he Secretary shall give advance written notice, as prescribed by

Council.
such notilces shall include dqte,

the Counc11, of all maetlngs,
purpose of the meeting. :

Section 2. A quorum shall consist of three (3) members and no official action
shall be transacted in ti:re absence of a quroum at any time. (Amendment XI)

time, place and

ARTICLE VI — ORDER OF BUSINESS

section-l. The Tribal council shall determine the order of business. The
Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer shall prepare an agenda for both Reqular
and Speclal Meetings Ffor the consideration of the Tribal Council which shall

include, subject to change by the Council:

(a) call to order and roll call
(b} Reading of minutes of last meeting

{c) Unfinished business
{d) Reports

(e} New business

{f} adjournment

- 11 -

as may be available and - -

Such enactments shall be avallable for .

Page 12 of 15

nll'flnal decisions of the Trlbal Counc1l on matters oE temporary'-~'

interest or relating to -particular individuals, officials or committees-shall-
Such resolutions .shall be' numbered consecutlvely

-

T .
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ARTICLE- VITI - RATIFICATION

This Constitution and Bylaws, when approved by the Secretary of the Interior,
shall be effective from and after the date of its ratification by a majority
vote of adult Indians of the Seminole Tribe of Florida voting at an election
called for that purpose by the Secretary of the Interior: Provided, that at
least 30 percent of those entitled to vote shall vote in such an election.

For the  purpose of this election .any adult 21 years of age and over, vhose
"name appears ‘on the Census Roll of the Seminole Agency of January 1, 1957,
shall be eligible to vote. A voting list of such.eligible persons shall be

prepared by the Constitutional Committee and the Superintendent.

R

.__‘12 -
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APPROVAL

1, Roger Ernst, Assistant Secretary of the Interior of the United States of
america, by virtue of the authority granted me by the Act of June 18, 1934 (48
Stat. 984), as amended by the Act of June 15, 1935 (49 Stat. 378), do hereby
approve the attached Constitution and Bylaws of the Seminole Tribe of Florida.
subject to ratification by the Tribe in the manner therein provided.

Upon ratification of this Constitution and Bylaws, all rules and regulations
heretofore promulgated by the Interior Department or by the Bureau of Indian -
Affairs, 5o far as they may be incompatible with any of the provisions of the

said constitution and Bylaws, are declared imapplicable to the Seminole Tribe
of Florlda. : . :

, M, OFEiders " and enployées O the. Tnteriok Dépagtment are Grdéred to.abldé by,
: .the .provisions of ‘the said Constitution -and Bylaws.” = - S e

Apprbvai recommended:
{sgd) Glenn L. Emmons
commissioner of Indian Affairs

Roger Ernst
DSSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR
{SEAL) ‘

washington, D.C. July 11, 1957

CERTIFICATE OF RATIFICATION

pursuant to Section 16 of the Act of June 18, 1934 (48 Stat. 984), as amended
by the Act of June 15, 1935 (49 Stat. 378), the attached constitution and
Bylaws approved on July 11, 1957, by Roger Ernst, assistant Secretary of the
Tnterior was submitted for ratification to the adult Indians of the Seminole
Tribe of Florida and was on Ruqust 21, 1957, ratified by a vote of 241 for.
and 5 against, in an election in which at least 30 percent of those entitled

to vote cast thelr ballots.

(syd) Bill Osceola
Chairman, Constitutional Committee

*

{sgd)} Mike Osceola
secretary, Constitutlonal Committee

-

{sgd} K.An. Marmon
Superintendent, Seminole Agency

Revised 11/28/89
DOCO337n ‘

f
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'SEMINOLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA
TRIBAL COUNCIL

Ratified Constitution/BylLaws — August 21, 1957

Adopted Amendment Nos. I thru IV to Constitution/ByLaws - June 25, 1960

Adopted Amendments to Constitution/ByLaws - March 14, 1963
Amendment Nos. V - XI

Adopted Amendments to Constitution/Bylaws — February 14, 1967
Amendment Nos. XII — XVI

; dogted Amendments to. Constltution/ByLaws - April 22 1933 -
Amenament Nos. XVII-- . _

UARAALASEE SRR ++++++++++++++++++++++++++H~+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++
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]

RE: ORDINANCE op 'I’HE SEMINOLE TRIBE 01-" F‘LORIDA RELATING 10 178 -
IMMUNITY FROM SUIT UNDER THE DOCTRINE OF TRIBAL SOVEREIGN
IMMUNITY; THE APPLICABILITY 'OF SUCH IMMUNITY TO TRIBAL
OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZED TRIBAL AGENTS; EXCLUSIVE
METHOD FOR TRIBAL WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AND.
RENUNCIATION OF ALL PRIOR NON-CONFORMING ACTS PURPORTING TO -
WAIVE TRIBAL SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AS TO THE SEMINOLE TRIBE OF
FLORIDA AND ITS TRIBAL OFFICIALS EMPLOYEES  AND AUTHORIZED
AGENTS : o

- SEMINOLE -‘TRIBE OF. FLORIDA

HOLLYWOOD,; FLORIDA S

"ORDINANCE No. C-01-95.

WHEREAS, the SEMINOLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA -- whose . ancestorial
" heritage and tribal history substantially predates -
.Colopial América -- formally organized for the common
welfdre of "its tribal members. in -accordance with the
" provisions of Section 16 of the Indian Reorganization Act
of 15834, as embodied in 25 U.S.€. Section 476. As such,
the SEMINOLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA id¢ a sovereign Indian tribe
recognized and designated ag an Indian trlbe pursuant to
-the Act; and ‘ . ’

‘WHEREAS, the present members of the Seminole Tribe of Florida are " -

" » . desgcendants of a small number of Semincle Indians who --

- - approximately 150 years ago -- stood fast to their
ancestorial land rather than be forcibly removed along

- what has come to be known as the "Trail of Tears" over.

. which the tribal members of the five civilized ‘tribes

{Cherokee, CGhoctaw, Creek, Chickasaw and Seminole} were

: . marched on foot from ‘their ancestorial lands to.an area

|- call Indian territory which is now. a part of ‘the State of-.uﬁ
i ’Oklahoma, and . .

WHEREAS, . 'At" the- time.of its formal organlzat1on - the ' Seminole
’ Tribe of Florida adopted a Constitution and a set of By-.
laws which 'were ratified by the tribal community and
" approved by the United States Secretary of the Interior, -
in full compllance with the Indian Reorganization Act of
1934, It is the Amended Constitution and By-lawe of ‘the -
‘Seminole Tribe .of Florida which-defines. the- right of the
Seminolée Tribe of Florida to détermine  its destiny - - ,
through-salf-government as.a federally recognized Indian: - -~ =~
tribe, :One of the longstanding powers that the Semlnole.*;.““;
_ Tribe of ;Florida has always .Had and retained is its:. : . 7 -
- rights ag a. sovereign government to tribal aovereigqiﬁ;f_;;J
“dmfwnity - £or -itself, its ' subordinate  economic and. . Y
governmental units, its trlbal foiClalS employees and' -
authorized agenta, and : . : LT

O
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RE: ORDINANCE OF THE SEMINOLE. TRIBE OF FLORIDA RELATING TO ITS™ -
' IMMUNITY .FROM SUIT UNDER' THE DOCTRINE OF TRIBAL SOVEREIGN
- IMMUNITY; -THE .APPLICABILITY OF SUCH IMMUNITY TO . TRIBAL
OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZED TRIBAL AGENTS; EXCLUSIVE
METHOD FOR' 'TRIBAL WAIVER OF " SOVEREIGN -IMMUNITY - AND
RENUNCIATION OF ALL PRIOR NON-CONFORMING ACTS -PURPORTING TO 1.
' ‘WAIVE TRIBAL SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AS TO THE $SEMINOLE TRIBE OF | On
FLORIDA AND ITS TRIBAL OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND . AUTHORIZED' .- °
AGENTS - - Ce

{ordinance No.. C-01-95) -
-Page 2 -

WHEREAS, as a sovereign Indian trihe, the Seminole Tribe -of
: Florida is culturally, politically and economically .. -
distinet from non-tribal .sociéty which has, for many .
Years, enjoyed distinct éducational,'economic,and‘o;hér_
opportunities which, until recently, were not practically -
-available to Seminoles.and other Indians; and’ N

- WHEREAS, ' the econoiric security and general welfare of the Seminole

’ Tribe of Florida and its members are largely dependent' -
upon the - careful protection of scarce tribal assets and -
regoyrces; and s S B B

WHEREAS, the Seminole Tribe.of Florida, -as an' aspect of its
- 8overeignty, is entitled tq- immunity from suit in-all. :-

'state and federal courts absent.the clear, express and
-unequivocal consent of the Seminole Tribe of Florida or * -

the clear, -express and unequivocal consent of the United ' .
States Congrees; and . - o L '

WHEREAS, the purpose of tribal sovereign immunity is to . guard -
' © -against the unwarranted exercise of state and federal -
Jurisdiction over the Seminole Tribe of Florida, :its.
subordinate economic and  governmental units,. tribal
officials, employees and -authorized agents and over |
-tribal affalre which would impinge upon tribal self: .
- government and economic development, including . the.
protection of scarce tribal assets and regources which
are held for the benefit of all tribal membeis and must -
be available at all times to be applied to meet tribal
néeds; and . - : ' : B

. WHEREAS, thé government of the Seminole Tribe of Florida
Lo congtitutionally operates through the Tribal Council -and
can -only function through the actions of tribal .
officials, - employses and  authorized  agents of .the '
Seminole Tribe of Florida who are likewige .entitled:to . I
immunity from guit in all state and federal courts where: - - .
such tribal officials, employees or authorized agents act - ..
on behalf of thé.Seminole Tribe of Florida in the cotvrse .
- of their agency or are acting within'that degree of ~: - . -
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. RE: ORDINANCE OF THE SEMINOLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA RELATING TO ITS

. IMMUNITY FROM SUIT UNDER ‘THE DOCTRINE OF TRIBAL -SOVEREIGN-
IMMUNITY; THE APPLICABILITY OF SUCH IMMUNITY TO - “TRIBAL
OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZED TRIBAL AGENTS; EXCLUSIVE
METHOD = FOR TRIBAL WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AND .
RENUNCIATION OF ALL PRIOR NON-CONFORMING ACTS PURPORTING TO - -
WAIVE TRIBAL SOVEREIGN .IMMUNITY ‘AS TO THE SEMINOLE TRIBE OF
iéORIDA AND ITS TRIBAL OFFICIALS,. EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZED

ENTS

(Ordinance No._C-Ol-BS)
"Page 3

"authorlty whlch.the Seminole Tribe of Florida is capable'
of bestowing upon .such tribal official, .employee, -or
%gent as a matter of federal, constitutional, .or trxbal'
law; and . :

WHEREAS, ag "an apparent result of increased prosperxty, the
Seminole Tribe of Florida, its subordinate economic. and-
governmental units as well as tribal officials, employeesﬁ

" and authorized agents have been named, from time to time,
as parties defendant in federal and state litigation
thereby exposing the Seminole Tribe of- Florida. to. -
unnecesgary costs. and.. expeénses and threatening °the
economic resources and general welfare of the Semlnole
“Tribe of Florlda ‘and its membcrs; and .

WHEREAS, the Seminole Tribe of Florlda desires to make clear te -
all persons having business or otherwise deallng'WLth the:
.Seminole Tribe of ‘Florida, its subordinate ecanomic :and -

governmental units, its tribal officials, employees and
authorlzed‘agents that the Seminole Tribe of Florida does
not under any circumstances intend to voluntarily waive
its entitlement to immunity from suit’ in -state: -and
federal courts under the doctrine of.tribal ‘sovereign:
immunity absent strict and complete compliance with the .
procedures set forth below which shall be the exclusive _
method for effecting a voluntary trlbal waiver of o
soverelgn immunity, and ' S . o e

WHEREAS, - the Tribal Councxl has revlewed th19 Ordinance and.it 13';fj-fﬂ;
- . othexwise Eully advised. LY T

NOW THEREFORE BE 1T ORDAINED that the Seminole Trlbe of Florida
its suboxdinate economic and governmental units as well as its..
tribal offmcmals, employees and authorized agents are immune from
suit brought by any third-party in any staté or federal . courtgh;
absent the cleax, express and unequivocal congent of the- Semiiicle. ..
Tribe of Plorida or the clear, -express and unequivocal consent of < o
the United States Congress. - This immunity shall apply whether thc" ﬁf‘“_
Tribe or any subordinate .economic or governmental unit is engaged o
in a private enterprlae or governmental function, and u-,f?;"

e A o R )
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.RE: -ORDINANCE OF THE. SEMINOLE 'TRIBE OF FLORIDA RELATING TO ITS
IMMUNITY FROM SUIT UNDER THE DOCTRINE OF. TRIBAL SOVEREIGN
IMMUNITY; THE APPLICABILITY OF SUCH IMMONITY TO TRIBAL
OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZED TRIBAL AGENTS; EXCLUSIVE
METHOD FOR . TRIBAL WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY . AND
RENUNCIATION OF ALL PRIOR NON-CONFORMING ACTS PURPORTING TO
WAIVE TRIBAL SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AS TO THE SEMINOLE TRIBE OF
FLORIDA AND ITS TRIBAL OFFICIALS EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZED

AGENTS
{Ordinance No. C-01-95)
Page 4

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED: that all tribal officials, employees or
other authorized agents shall likewise be immune from suit brought -
by any third-party in -any state or federal court where such tribal
official, employee or other authorized agent is either acting on
“behalf of the Seminole Tribe of Florida in the course of their
agency or where the acts of such tribal official, employee or other
agent, though mistaken, negligent or otherwise improper are within.’
that degree of authorlty which the Seminole Tribe of Florida is
capable of bestowing upon the agent as a matter of federal,
constitutional or ‘tribal law; and : .

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED: that the consent of the Semindle Tribe of.
. Florida to waive its immunitvy from suit in any state or federal
court may only be accomplished through the clear, express and-
.unequivocal consent of the Seminole Tribe of Florida pursuant to a --
resolution duly enacted by the Tribal Council of the Seminolé Tribe
of Florida sxtting in legal gession. Any such resolutiéon
purporting to waive sovereign immunity as to the Seminole Tribe of
~Florida, any of its subordinate economic or governmental unite ox'
any “of its tribal officials, employees or authorized agents shall:
Sp&lelcally acknowledge that the Seminole Tribe of Florida.'is
waiving its sovereign immunity or a limited basis and describe .the -
purpose and extent to which such waiver applies. The failure‘of’
the Tribal Council resolution to contain such: language ‘shall render °
it ineffective to COnatitute a walver of tribal soverelgn 1mmunity,~

'and.

BE IT 'FURTHER ORDA'INED ‘that - this Tribal Ord:.nance shall be.j .
retroactive to January 1,.19%0 and that all prior acts -- other:;,
than a clear, express and unequivoeal waiver of tribal sovereignJ

immunity pursuant: to a resolution ‘duly ehacted by ‘the Trmbal ,
Council of the Semlnole Tribe of Florlda sitting in legal session
authoxrizing a waiver of tribal sovereign immunity shall and is .
-hereby declared to be null and’ void and . is. bereby’ renounced and

BE 1T FURTHER ORDAINED that any "sue and be sued"A clause S
contained .in any charter, agreement or other ‘dacument pertaining, -
in any respect to any subordinate economic or governmental unit of -
the Seminole Tribe of Florida 1s hereby declared to be vaid. and_]
ineffectual as of the 'date of this Tribal Ordlnance, and s
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BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED: = that any third-party who initiates or
maintaine any regulatory, administrative or civil action’ in any
state or federal court or before any tribunal of any  kind’
whataoever against the Seminole Tribe of Florida, any of its .. :
subordinate economic or governmental unite, or any of ite txibal
officials, employees or anthorized agents who were acting-within '
the course or scope of their agency or who were acting within that
degree of authority that the Tribal Council of. the Seminole -Tribe

. of Florida is capable of bestowing upon such tribal official,
employee or authorized agent as a matter of federal, comstitutiomal
or tribal law, such third-party shall be liable for -all . taxable
costs and other expenpes -ag well as attorney’s fees incurred.in -
defending against such action; and : ' :

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED: that witlout waiving tribal sovereign
immunity or congenting to any suit in any respect, any action
brought against the ‘Seminole Tribe of Florida, any of its-’

. subordinate economic. or governmental units. or any tribal official,
employee or other agent for. any act arising out of ‘any act
committed within the course and scope of their agency or within
that degree -of authority which the Seminole Tribe of Florida is
capabile of bestowing upon such tribal official, .employee or.
authorized agent as a matter of federal, constitutional or tribal .
law may only be venued in the United States District Court for the

- Southexn Pistrict of Fleorida or the Circuit Court of  the 217th.

Judicial Circuit in“and for ‘Broward County, Florida; and: .
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BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED: that this ordlnance is hereby adopted
after motion -made by Max B. Osceola, Jr. seconded by
Fred Smith and a roll call vote as follows

Chairman James E, Billie . . . . . . . . . . . . Aye
Vice-Chairman Fred Smith . . i, wo. ! BAye .
Council Representative David R, Cypress . . . . Aye
Council Representative Jack Smith, Jr. . . . . . Aye
Council Representatlve Max B.. Osceola, Jr. . . ,‘ Aye .
DONE THIS 1éth DAY OF March T1¢9s, at ‘the regular meeting of the' F .[

Tribal Council, duly convened a Hollywood Florlida, with a quorum
being present by a vote of 5 fgy, 0 against, with 0 abstentlons ’

l‘,f'_. /I-C_,_”- }f .
t/Secretary/Treasurer
-TRIBAL COUNCIL

franklin Keel, Afea Director

- UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE
INTERIOR, BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS,
EASTERN AREA OFFICE ..

c:\wpdoés\resoluti\aov.lmm




	III. CONCLUSION
	SERVICE LIST

